
 

South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee 
agenda 
Date: Tuesday 27 June 2023 

Time: 2.30 pm 

Venue: Amersham Council Chamber, King George V House, King George V Road, 
Amersham HP6 5AW 

Membership: 

T Egleton (Chairman), D Anthony, M Bracken, S Chhokar, P Griffin, G Hollis (Vice-Chairman), 
Dr W Matthews, G Sandy and A Wheelhouse 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Legal & Democratic Service 
Director at monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Public Speaking 

If you have any queries concerning public speaking at Planning Committee meetings, 
including registering your intention to speak, please speak to a member of the Planning 
team – planning.cdc@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 01494 732950. Please refer to the Guide to 
Public Speaking at Planning Committee here. 

  

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
mailto:planning.cdc@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
https://buckinghamshire.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13577


Agenda Item 
 

Page No 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  
    
2 Declarations of Interest  
    
3 Minutes 3 - 4 
 To note the minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2023. 

 
 

 
Planning Applications 
  
4 PL/23/0768/FA - The Stoke Poges School, Rogers Lane, Stoke Poges, 

Buckinghamshire, SL2 4LN 
5 - 12 

    
5 PL/23/1174/FA - Walters Court, 811 Bath Road, Burnham, 

Buckinghamshire, SL6 0PR 
13 - 24 

    
6 Date of Next Meeting  
 Tuesday 25 July 2023 at 2.30pm 

 
 

 
7 Availability of Members Attending Site Visits (if required)  
 To confirm members’ availability to undertake site visits on Monday 24 

July 2023, if required 
 

 

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Liz Hornby on 01494 421261, email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 



 

 

South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee 
minutes 
Minutes of the meeting of the South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee held on 
Tuesday 30 May 2023 in Amersham Council Chamber, King George V House, King George V 
Road, Amersham HP6 5AW, commencing at 2.30 pm and concluding at 3.45 pm. 

Members present 

T Egleton, D Anthony, P Bass, M Bracken, S Chhokar, P Griffin, G Hollis, J MacBean, G Sandy 
and A Wheelhouse 

Others in attendance 

L Hornby, G Mansfield, B Robinson and K Stubbs 

Apologies 

Dr W Matthews 

Agenda Item 
 
1 Appointment of Vice-Chairman 
 Members noted the appointment of Councillor Guy Hollis as the Vice-Chairman of 

the South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee for the Municipal Year 
2023/2024. 
  

2 Declarations of Interest 
 Councillor J MacBean: Planning Application PL/22/4395/VRC – declared an interest 

as some of the objectors were known to her. She declared she had an open mind 
and would listen to the debate before reaching a decision. 
  
Councillor A Wheelhouse: Planning Application PL/22/4395/VRC – declared an 
interest due to her being the Chair of the Beaconsfield Society and a member of the 
Society’s planning sub-committee, but took no part in the objection submitted by 
the Society. She declared also that she was a member of Beaconsfield Town 
Council’s Planning Committee but did not vote on that committee. She declared she 
had an open mind and would listen to the debate before reaching a decision. 
  

3 Minutes 
 The minutes of the meetings held on 2 May 2023 and 17 May 2023 were agreed as 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

an accurate record.  
  

4 PL/22/4395/VRC - Land South of Longbottom Lane and East of Amersham Road, 
Beaconsfield, Buckinghamshire 

 Variation of condition 6 (parking and access) of planning permission 98/01200/OUT 
(Pay as you play practice golf facility (Renewal of Planning Permission 
S/92/0900/FF)) to allow revision of access design and amendment of visibility splay 
detail (part retrospective). 
  
This application was the subject of a site visit.  
  
Members noted the written update.  
  
Following a full debate, Members voted in favour of the motion to delegate approval 
to officers subject to an additional condition requiring the applicant to submit a 
scheme for reinstatement of the hedge along the highway boundary, beyond the 
visibility splay and access approved, such scheme to be considered in consultation 
with the Chairman.  
  
Speaking as Ward Member: Councillor A Cranmer 
Speaking as Councillor: Councillor A Wood 
Speaking in objection: Mr J Fitzsimons 
Speaking on behalf of the applicant: Mr J Litton, KC 
  
It was proposed by Councillor D Anthony and seconded by Councillor G Hollis. 
  

Resolved: that the application be approved subject to the additional 
condition referred to above.  

  
5 Date of Next Meeting 
 Tuesday 27 June 2023 at 2.30pm. 

  
6 Availability of Members Attending Site Visits (if required) 

  

Page 4



 

Buckinghamshire Council 
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk  

 
 

Report to South Area Planning Committee 

Application Number: PL/23/0768/FA 

Proposal: Extension of rubber mulch surfacing on school field. 

 

Site location: The Stoke Poges School 
 Rogers Lane 
 Stoke Poges,  
 Buckinghamshire 
 SL2 4LN 

 

Applicant: The Stoke Poges School (Miss Kyra Sheehan) 

Case Officer: Kanchan Sharma 

Ward affected: Stoke Poges & Wexham 

Parish-Town Council: Stoke Poges Parish Council 

Valid date: 28 March 2023 

Determination date: 28 June 2023 

Recommendation: Conditional permission 

 

1.0 Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration 

1.1 The application proposes resurfacing on the existing playing grounds of the Stoke 
Poges School with rubber mulch that is an all-weather surfacing. 

1.2 The application site is a community school managed by Buckinghamshire Council and 
the application therefore has to be determined by the Planning Committee. 

1.3 Recommendation – Conditional Permission. 

2.0 Description of Proposed Development 

2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the installation of all-weather surfacing 
on the existing playing ground of the Stoke Poges School. This application proposes 
laying of additional 640m2 of rubber mulch, which is an all-weather surface and can 
be used by children throughout the school year. 

2.2 The application is accompanied by: 

a) Heritage Statement 

2.3 An additional plan was submitted to reflect the location of the proposed resurfaced 
area and the existing football pitch (including a 3m runoff area). 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

http://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/


3.0 Relevant Planning History 

3.1 PL/22/4082/SA - Withdrawn, 15 March 2023 - Certificate of lawfulness for proposed 
installation of all-weather surfacing.           

3.2 PL/21/4611/FA - Conditional Permission, 11 March 2022 - Erection of single storey 
classroom building.                   

3.3 14/02374/FUL – Conditional Permission, 16 February 2015 - Single storey extension to 
existing single storey building. 

3.4 00/08008/CC – Conditional consent, 10 October 2000 - Extensions to provide 4 
classrooms, new library, staffroom and admin. facilities; internal alterations; new hard 
play areas and car parking. 

4.0 Summary of Representations 

4.1 No third-party representation has been received.  

5.0 Policy Considerations and Evaluation 

• National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021. 

• Planning Practice Guidance 

• South Bucks Core Strategy Development Plan Document - Adopted February 2011 

• South Bucks District Local Plan - Adopted March 1999 Consolidated September 2007 
and February 2011;  

• South Bucks District Local Plan Appendix 5 (Conservation Areas) 

• South Bucks District Local Plan Appendix 6 (Parking standards) 

• Chiltern and South Bucks Townscape Character Study 2017 

• Stoke Poges West End Conservation Area Designated 19th July 2011 Character 
appraisal. 

Principle and Location of Development 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP11 (Healthy and viable town and village centres) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
C1 (Development within a Conservation Order) 
EP3 (The use, design and layout of development) 

5.1 The application site is located within the developed area of Stoke Poges where new 
development is acceptable in principle. 

5.2 Chapter 8 of the NPPF relates to promoting healthy and safe communities and 
specifically at Paragraph 95 states that 'it is important that a sufficient choice of school 
places is available to meet the need of existing and new communities. Local Planning 
Authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach in meeting 
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education.' This goes 
on to further elaborate that great weight needs to be given to create, expand or alter 
schools. Expanding school facilities is therefore considered acceptable in principle. 

5.3 The proposal involves the provision of additional all-weather surface within the 
existing ground and would not increase the capacity of the school but deliver an 
improved outdoor area for the school.  

Page 6



Design / Historic environment (or Conservation Area or Listed Building Issues) 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP8 (Built and historic environment) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
C1 (Development within a Conservation Order) 
EP3 (The use, design and layout of development) 

5.4 The site is located with the Stoke Poges West End Conservation Area. Paragraph 199 
of the NPPF advises that great weight should be given to the conservation of a heritage 
asset, with the weight varying depending on the importance of the asset. Significance 
can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or 
development within its setting. Where a development proposal will lead to less than 
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should 
be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum 
viable use (paragraph 202). 

5.5 Given the existing and established uses on the site, the location of the proposed new 
surface and its use, it would not have any material or adverse consequences for the 
conservation area or the character and appearance of the area generally.  

5.6 The development would not be readily visible from public realm and listed Buildings 
within the area are at significant distances from the proposed development such that 
the new surface would not have any impact on the setting of these Listed Buildings.  

5.7 It is considered that the proposal would comply with policies EP3 and C1 of the South 
Bucks District Local Plan and Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy. 

Amenity of existing and future residents 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
EP3 (The use, design and layout of development) 

5.8 Given the scale and nature of the proposal it is considered that it would not have any 
adverse impact on the amenity of nearby neighbouring residential properties. 

Other Matters  

Sport England 

5.9 The proposed works were related to the resurfacing of the school’s play area and 
therefore, Sports England (SE) was consulted. In response to the consultation, SE 
requested for the proposed pitch layout plan, which could reflect how the playing field 
is marked out and used for sports pitches as the playing field accommodates a mini-
soccer pitch.  

5.10 Following the submission of additional plan, Sports England has confirmed that the 
proposed development of laying a new all-weather surface would not interfere with 
the existing playing facilities and would retain the use of the playground and is deemed 
acceptable. As such Sport England has raised no objection to the proposal.  

6.0 Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment  

6.1 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition, 
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning 

Page 7



Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing 
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to: 

a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material, 
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application 

(such as CIL if applicable), and, 
c. Any other material considerations 

6.2 As set out above it is considered that the proposed development would accord with 
the relevant Development Plan Policies.  

7.0 Working with the applicant / agent 

7.1 In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2021) the Council approach decision-
taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development 
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure 
developments. 

7.2 The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by 
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating 
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.  

7.3 In this instance the applicant  

• The applicant was informed about the request submitted by the Sports England.  

• The applicant was provided the opportunity to submit additional information to 
the scheme to address the issues raised by Sport England. 

• The application was considered by the Planning Committee where the 
applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and promote the 
application. 

8.0 Recommendation: Conditional Permission. Subject to the following conditions: - 

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning from the date of this decision notice. (SS01) 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) (a) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (or any statutory amendment or re-enactment thereof).  

 
2. The materials to be used in the construction of the finishing surfaces of the development 

hereby permitted shall be as per the details on the plans.  
 Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area. (Policy GB1 and EP3 of the South Bucks 

District Local Plan (adopted March 1999) refers.) 
 
3. The development to which this planning permission relates shall be undertaken solely in 

accordance with the following drawings: 

List of approved plans: 

Received Plan Reference 

27 Mar 2023 Location Plan 

28 Mar 2023 Site Plan 

18 May 2023 Proposed Site plan 

  

Page 8



APPENDIX A:  Consultation Responses and Representations 
 
Councillor Comments 
No comments received.  
 
Parish/Town Council Comments 
No comments made.  
 
Consultation Responses  
 
Sports England 
 
Initially raised concerns and requested for an additional information, which was submitted during 
the course of the application. Following the submission of additional plan, Sports England has 
confirmed that the proposal would meet their E3 and E5 exceptions, which are as: 
E5 - 'The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch and 
does not:  

• reduce the size of any playing pitch  
• result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of adequate safety 

margins and run-off areas);  
• reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or the 

capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain their quality;  
• result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site; or  
• prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing field on the site.' 

 
E3 - 'The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor facility for sport, the provision of which 
would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as to outweigh the detriment caused 
by the loss, or prejudice to the use, of the area of playing field.' 
 
The proposed development of laying a new all-weather surface would not interfere with the 
existing playing facilities and would be acceptable.  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B:  Site Location Plan 

 
 
Do not scale – this map is indicative only 
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA 
Licence Number 100023578 

Page 11

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Buckinghamshire Council 
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk  

 

 
Report to South Area Planning Committee 

Application Number: PL/23/1174/FA 

Proposal: Two-storey demountable building comprising 12 
apartments (3x one bed and 9x two bed) (use class C3) to 
provide interim residential accommodation to homeless 
households with associated car parking, private and 
shared amenity space, landscaping and other ancillary 
works (a further temporary permission for a period of 5 
years is sought). 

 

Site location: Walters Court 
 811 Bath Road 
 Burnham 
 Buckinghamshire  

 

Applicant: Buckinghamshire Council (Mr Anwar Zaman) 

Case Officer: Richard Regan 

Ward affected: Cliveden 

Parish-Town Council: Burnham Parish Council 

Valid date: 5 April 2023 

Determination date: 5 July 2023 

Recommendation: Conditional permission 

 
1.0 Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration 

1.1 The application seeks to obtain temporary planning permission for a further 5 years 
for a Two-storey demountable building comprising 12 apartments (3 x one bed and 9 
x two bed) (class C3) to provide interim residential accommodation to homeless 
households with associated car parking, private and shared amenity space, landscaping 
and other ancillary works.   

1.2 The development already exists, having been constructed and occupied following the 
grant of a previous temporary planning permission under reference 17/2391/FUL. 

1.3 It is considered that the proposals are acceptable, by virtue of the fact that it would 
not have an adverse impact on the Green Belt, there has been a significant increase in 
the demand and need for the type of temporary housing being provided, and it allows 
for an accurate marketing exercise to be undertaken in post-covid conditions to 
identify future demand for the site as a commercial/employment property. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

http://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/


1.4 The application has been referred for determination by the South Area Planning 
Committee on the basis that the Council are the applicant and own the site.  

1.5 Recommendation – Temporary Conditional Permission. 

2.0 Description of Proposed Development 

2.1 The application seeks to obtain temporary planning permission for a further 5 years 
for a Two-storey demountable building comprising 12 apartments (3 x one bed and 9 
x two bed) (class C3) to provide interim residential accommodation to homeless 
households with associated car parking, private and shared amenity space, landscaping 
and other ancillary works.   

2.2 The application site is located within the Green Belt on the southern side of Bath Road 
(the A4). The vehicular access exits onto Bath Road and runs along the western 
boundary of the site, also providing access to the Thames Water treatment works to 
the south of the site. The site is currently occupied by the development which this 
application seeks to retain. 

2.3 The Bishop Centre (containing Tesco) is located to the north of the site, and the 
surrounding area is predominantly undeveloped Green Belt land, although two 
residential properties are situated to the north-east with the closest being No. 801 
Bath Road. 

2.4 The application is accompanied by a number of documents that were also submitted 
with the previous application including; design and access statement; transport 
assessment; air quality report; noise report; ground investigation study; and drainage 
strategy.  The current application is also accompanied with an up-to-date planning 
statement. 

3.0 Relevant Planning History 

Relevant planning history for the site: 

3.1 13/00716/TEMP – Conditional Permission, 21 June 2013 - Temporary use of Bath Road 
Depot for parking of refuse, recycling and street cleaning vehicles and temporary 
welfare cabin, for the period 24th June 2013 to 31st January 2014. Hours of operation 
required are 06.30 to 18.00 Monday to Friday, 06.30 to 13.00 on Saturday and 06.30 
to 16.30 on up to three Saturdays per year. 

3.2 13/00880/FUL – Conditional Permission, 25 July 2013 - Single storey industrial 
premises to contain 4 individual units for B1 and B8 use. 

3.3 16/01263/FUL – Conditional Permission, 2 September 2016 - Single storey industrial 
premises to contain 4 individual units for B1 (Business) and B8 (Storage or Distribution) 
use. 

3.4 17/02391/FUL – Conditional Permission, 3 April 2018 - Two-storey demountable 
building comprising 12 apartments (3 x one bed and 9 x two bed) (class C3) to provide 
interim residential accommodation to homeless households with associated car 
parking, private and shared amenity space, landscaping and other ancillary works. 
(Temporary permission for a period of 10 years is sought). 

3.5 PL/18/2845/NMA - Accepted, 5 September 2018 - Non material amendment to 
planning permission 17/02391/FUL (Two-storey demountable building comprising 12 
apartments (3 x one bed and 9 x two bed) (class C3) to provide interim residential 
accommodation to homeless households with associated car parking, private and 

Page 14



shared amenity space, landscaping and other ancillary works. (Temporary permission 
for a period of 10 years is sought) to allow change in surface material from paving to 
macadam, consolidation of plant room, relocation of bin store and change in cladding 
to render. 

3.6 PL/19/1396/NMA - Accepted, 23 May 2019 - Non material amendment to planning 
permission 17/02391/FUL (Two-storey demountable building comprising 12 
apartments (3 x one bed and 9 x two bed) (class C3) to provide interim residential 
accommodation to homeless households with associated car parking, private and 
shared amenity space, landscaping and other ancillary works. (Temporary permission 
for a period of 10 years is sought) to allow replacement of the metal railing with 
featheredge fence, omit soft landscaping to private patio and omit the canopy in the 
cycle parking. 

4.0 Summary of Representations 

4.1 The Parish Council raised no objections to the proposals. 

5.0 Policy Considerations and Evaluation 

• National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019. 
• Planning Practice Guidance 
• National Design Guidance, October 2019 
• South Bucks Core Strategy Development Plan Document - Adopted February 2011 
• South Bucks District Local Plan - Adopted March 1999 Consolidated September 2007 

and February 2011;  
• South Bucks District Council Residential Design Guide Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) - Adopted October 2008 
• Chiltern and South Bucks Townscape Character Study 2017 
• Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation (SAC) Mitigation Strategy, March 2020 

Principle/Green Belt Considerations 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP1 (Housing provision and delivery) 
CP10 (Employment) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
GB1 (Green Belt boundaries and the control over development in the Green Belt) 
H2 (Housing allocation) 

5.1 Temporary planning permission was previously granted for the erection a two-storey 
demountable building comprising 12 apartments (3 x one bed and 9 x two bed) (class 
C3) to provide interim residential accommodation to homeless households with 
associated car parking, private and shared amenity space, landscaping and other 
ancillary works. 

5.2 When determining that previous application, it was considered that it was acceptable 
and justifiable from a Green Belt point of view due to reasons which included the fact 
that the temporary built form would have had a comparable scale to the commercial 
buildings that already had extant permission to be built on the site; the fact that the 
proposed development would provide much needed temporary accommodation to 
homeless households; and the fact that the permission would be for a temporary 
period of 5 years which would allow time for the site to be marketed for its original 
commercial use, and enable a review to take place after this period to reassess the 

Page 15



need for such temporary accommodation, and the demand for commercial properties 
in this location. 

5.3 The original 5 year temporary period has now lapsed, and a further 5 year period is 
being sought for the retention of the residential accommodation. 

5.4 From a physical point of view, the development remains the same as previously 
approved.  It does not enlarge or increase in size, height, scale or spread, as such, it 
would have exactly the same physical presence and impact on the Green Belt as 
previously approved and as constructed.  On this basis, it is considered that the 
proposed development would continue to have an acceptable impact on the openness 
of the Green Belt. 

5.5 From a need point of view, the current application has been accompanied by a 
supporting statement from the Councils Housing Team, which sets out the 
need/demand for this type of temporary accommodation. The figures show that the 
need/demand for this temporary accommodation has almost doubled in the last 3 
years, and that there are no indications that the demand for homelessness support 
and temporary accommodation will reduce in the short to medium term. It is the 
Housing Teams view therefore, that it is essential for the Council to maintain and retain 
its existing substantive temporary accommodation while continuing to increase the 
overall volume of units. 

5.6 It is the Councils Housing Teams view that the current demands highlight the 
importance of securing the continuation of this site as a high quality 12-unit temporary 
accommodation scheme. The site is a vital part of the Council’s overall stock of 
substantive temporary accommodation. If the site ceases to be utilised as temporary 
accommodation, then this will increase the existing pressures and result in a larger 
number of households having to be accommodated in less appropriate and more 
insecure nightly booked accommodation. It will also remove the only substantive 
temporary accommodation that is located in the extreme south of the county in the 
former South Bucks legacy district. This will severely impact on the Council’s ability to 
provide temporary accommodation options across the whole county and result in 
more homeless households from the south of the county having to be moved to 
temporary accommodation that is a long way from their family, employment and 
support networks. Overall, they consider that the cessation of this site would have a 
severe and detrimental effect on the Council’s homelessness services and on the 
welfare and well-being of the homeless households that it is looking to assist. 

5.7 In light of the evidence of increased demand for this type of accommodation, together 
with the comments of the Councils own Housing Team, it is considered that there is 
clearly still a justified need for this type of accommodation, an even bigger need, in 
fact, than what existed at the time of the original application. 

5.8 In terms of the matter of being a further temporary permission, and the 
appropriateness of another 5 years, it was previously considered that a 5 year period 
would allow for an appropriate period of time to pass to enable a suitable review of 
the temporary housing situation to be undertaken to gage the level of need/demand 
after this period.  It has already been set out above, that the level of need/demand has 
more than doubled.  The temporary 5 year period was also considered appropriate to 
allow for a suitable period of time for the site to be marketed for commercial 
purposes/uses in order to understand the demand/need for such premises.  Prior to 
the temporary permission being granted, the site was an employment site but the 

Page 16



previous application was not supported by a marketing exercise in accordance with 
Core Strategy Policy CP10 which states that "…in seeking to demonstrate that there is 
no reasonable prospect of a site being used for the permitted purpose, the applicant 
will need to have undertaken a prolonged period of unsuccessful marketing, using 
details approved by the District Council".  The previous application set out that it was 
not the applicant's case that the site will not come forward for employment use in the 
future, but that the Council (the owner) considered that the use of the site for 
temporary housing accommodation was strategically more important at that moment 
in time. On that basis the application did not attempt to comply with Policy CP10 in 
relation to marketing the site, but rather it was considered appropriate in the 
circumstances to condition the temporary permission to carry out the required 
marketing exercise. 

5.9 It is acknowledged that such a marketing exercise has not yet been undertaken, and 
one has not been submitted in support of this current application.  However, it is 
considered that there have been extenuating circumstances in this instance that can 
justify the lack of a marketing exercise at present.  These circumstances consist of the 
fact that the majority of the period since the original temporary permission was 
granted, has been significantly affected by Covid.  As a result, it would have been 
difficult to compile an accurate marketing review, as the market conditions have been 
severely impacted upon by Covid, and would not have resulted in a true representation 
of the level of need/demand for commercial premises.  It is considered reasonable 
therefore to allow further time for an appropriate marketing exercise to be undertaken 
within an environment that has now adapted to the effects of Covid and changes in 
business practices and needs.  It is considered that a period of 5 years to compile such 
information is sufficient and appropriate to provide an accurate understanding of a 
commercial demand for these properties.  When combined with the continued need 
for the temporary accommodation, it is considered that the granting of a further 
temporary permission for 5 years meets current demands and need for the site, as well 
as providing an opportunity to review the situation in the future, but within a 
reasonable timeframe. 

Transport matters and parking 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP7 (Accessibility and transport) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
TR5 (Access, highways work and traffic generation) 
TR7 (Traffic generation) 

5.10 The proposed parking provision and vehicular access arrangements, which were 
previously considered acceptable, would remain unchanged.  On this basis, the 
Councils Highways Officer raises no objections to the proposals. 

5.11 In light of these comments, and on the basis that the existing development remains 
unchanged in terms of parking provision and vehicular access, it is considered that the 
proposal would not lead to any unacceptable highway implications. 

Raising the quality of place making and design 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP8 (Built and historic environment) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
EP3 (The Use, Design and Layout of Development) 

Page 17



EP4 (Landscaping) 
EP6 (Designing to Reduce Crime) 
H9 (Residential development and layout) 

5.12 The layout, design, height, scale and appearance of the development remains as 
currently exists.  It was previously considered that the development would not 
adversely impact upon the character or appearance of the site or locality in general, 
and due to its set back from the highway, would have limited presence within the 
street scene. 

5.13 On this basis, it is considered that the proposals would remain of an acceptable design 
and appearance, not harming the visual amenities of the site or locality in general.  It 
is noted that planning permission has been granted for a row of residential dwellings 
on land to the front of the application site, which if built, would further reduce the 
visual and physical presence of the development within the locality. 

Amenity of existing and future residents 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
EP3 (The use, design and layout of development) 
EP5 (Sunlight and daylight) 

5.14 Given that the existing accommodation will remain as previously approved and 
constructed, it is considered that it will continue to provide an appropriate level of 
amenity for its occupants, as well as not adversely impacting upon the amenities of 
any neighbouring properties. 

Environmental issues 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP12 (Sustainable energy) 
CP13 (Environmental and resource management) 
Local Plan Saved Policies:  
EP3 (The use, design and layout of development) 

5.15 The previous permission included a condition that required the submission and 
approval of a land contamination investigation, together with verification and 
remediation measures.  Those details were subsequently submitted and approved, and 
incorporated into the development when constructed.  As such, it is considered that 
there are no land contamination risks to existing occupants. 

Flooding and drainage 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP13 (Environmental and resource management) 

5.16 The previous permission included a condition that required the submission and 
approval of an appropriate surface water drainage strategy.  Those details were 
subsequently submitted and approved, and incorporated into the development when 
constructed.  On the basis therefore that the existing development incorporates an 
appropriate surface water drainage strategy that prevents the risk of flooding within 
and outside of the site, the Councils Drainage officer does not raise any objections to 
the proposals from a flooding point of view. 

Ecology/Burnham Beeches 
Core Strategy Policies: 
CP9 (Natural environment) 
CP13 (Environmental and resource management).  

Page 18



5.17 It was previously considered that the proposals would not have had an adverse impact 
on any wildlife, including protected species.  Given that the current proposals seek to 
simply retain the existing built form and what was previously approved, it is considered 
that there would be no new or greater impact on wildlife as a result of the current 
application. 

5.18 Core Policy 9 of the adopted Core Strategy sets out that the highest priority will be 
given to the integrity of Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Para 
3.3.11 of the Core Strategy also states that "where a specific development could result 
in significant effects on the SAC, a Project level (regulation 48) HRA will need to be 
carried out by the developer when the planning application is submitted to determine 
whether mitigation measures are required." This is also consistent with Section 15 of 
the NPPF relating to 'Conserving and enhancing the natural environment'. The 
Council's approach to assessing the impact of new dwellings on Burnham Beeches SAC 
is set out in the adopted Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation Strategic 
Access Management and Monitoring Strategy SPD 

5.19 At the time of issuing the original permission for this accommodation, the Burnham 
Beeches Special Area of Conservation ("SAC") SPD was not in place. However, the 
residential accommodation subject of this application already exists and is occupied 
and the proposal is for a temporary planning permission. As such, it is considered that 
in this specific instance, the proposal does not require mitigating and a financial 
contribution towards the Burnham Beeches Mitigation Strategy is not required. 

6.0 Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment  

6.1 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition, 
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing 
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to: 

a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material, 
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application 

(such as CIL if applicable), and, 
c. Any other material considerations 

6.2 As set out above it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and 
would not prejudice the relevant national and local planning policies. 

7.0 Working with the applicant / agent  

7.1 In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach decision-
taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development 
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure 
developments. 

7.2 The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by 
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating 
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.  

8.0 Recommendation: Conditional Permission. Subject to the following conditions: 

1. This permission shall be for a limited period only, expiring on 5th July 2028. On or 
before that date the use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the buildings or 

Page 19



works carried out under this permission shall be removed. During the course of the 
temporary permission the owner will market the site for Use Class B1 and B8 purposes 
in a strategy to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority within 6 months 
of the granting of this planning permission, the strategy shall include a timescale for 
submitting an application similar to that permitted under 16/01263/FUL.  

 Reason: To enable a review of the demand of the specific type of residential 
accommodation being provided and to allow time for an appropriate marketing 
exercise of the site to be undertaken. (Policy GB1 of the South Bucks District Local Plan 
(adopted March 1999) and Policy CP10 South Bucks Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy (adopted February 2011) and the NPPF refers). 

 
2. The residential demountable building hereby approved shall only be occupied as 

temporary accommodation to house homeless people identified through the Council's 
Statutory Homeless Duties under Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996.  

 Reason: The design of the development, the location of the site, the level of parking 
provision require that there is strict control over the occupation of the development.  
(Policies GB1, GB4 and EP3 of the South Bucks District Local Plan (Adopted in March 
1999) and Policy CP3 of the South Bucks Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
(adopted February 2011) refer). 

 
3. The scheme for parking and manoeuvring indicated on the submitted plans shall be 

maintained as such and shall not be used for any other purpose.  
 Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise 

danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway. (Policy TR7 
of the South Bucks District Local Plan (adopted March 1999) refers.) 

 
4. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the "whole-

life" maintenance plan submitted and approved as part of application 
PL/18/2833/CONDA. 

 Reason: To ensure that maintenance arrangements have been arranged and agreed 
before any works commence on site that might otherwise be left unaccounted for. 
(Policies CP9 and CP13 of the South Bucks District Local Plan (adopted March 1999) 
refer.) 

 
5. The development to which this planning permission relates shall be undertaken solely 

in accordance with the following drawings: 

List of approved plans: 

Received Plan Reference 

5 Apr 2023 AEC001-PEV-XX-XX-DF-A-9001 REV P02 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 XX DR L 9001 REV C04 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 XX DR L 9002 REV C05 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 XX DR L 9005 REV C03 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 XX DR L 9007 REV C02 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 ZZ DR A 0104 REV P6 
5 Apr 2023 BAT ASL 00 ZZ DR A 0107 REV P6 

  

Page 20



APPENDIX A:  Consultation Responses and Representations 
 

Parish/Town Council Comments 

The Committee RESOLVED to state that they had NO OBJECTIONS 

 

Consultation Responses  

 

Highways Officer: 

I note that this application seeks what is essentially a renewal of planning application 17/02391/FUL, 
which in a response dated 27th March 2023, the Highway Authority had no objection to subject to 
condition. The submitted plans do not differ from that of the previously considered proposals, and 
as such I consider my comments and conditions in relation to the previous consent to remain 
applicable. 

Mindful of the above, I have no objection to the proposals subject to the following condition and 
informative being included in any planning permission you may grant: 

Condition 1:  Prior to the occupation of the development the modified access to Bath Road shall 
be designed in general accordance with the approved plans. The access shall be constructed in 
accordance with; ‘Buckinghamshire County Council’s Guidance note,“Commercial Vehicular Access 
within Highway Limits” 2013. 

Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway and of 
the development. 

Condition 2:  Prior to occupation of the development space shall be laid out within the site for 
parking for cars, loading and manoeuvring in accordance with the approved plans. This area shall be 
permanently maintained for this purpose. 

Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise danger, 
obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway. 

 

Informatives: 

The applicant is advised that the off-site works will need to be constructed under a Section 184 of 
the Highways Act legal agreement. This Small Works Agreement must be obtained from the Highway 
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land 
forming part of the highway. A minimum period of 3 weeks is required to process the agreement 
following the receipt by the Highway Authority of a written request. Please contact Development 
Management at the following address for information or apply online via Buckinghamshire County 
Council's website at www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transport-and-roads/highways-development-
management/apply-online/section-184-licence/ 

Highways Development Management 
6th Floor, County Hall 
Walton Street, Aylesbury, 
Buckinghamshire 
HP20 1UY 
Telephone 01296 382416 

Page 21

http://www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transport-and-roads/highways-development-management/apply-online/section-184-licence/
http://www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transport-and-roads/highways-development-management/apply-online/section-184-licence/


 

No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development site shall be parked on the 
public highway so as to cause an obstruction. Any such wilful obstruction is an offence under S137 
of the Highways Act 1980. 

It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving the development site to 
carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities should therefore be provided and used on the 
development site for cleaning the wheels of vehicles before they leave the site. 

 

SUDS Officer: 

Thank you for the consultation on the above proposal, which we received on 17/04/2023. Having 
reviewed the information submitted to accompany this application, Buckinghamshire Council as the 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has no comments on this planning application due to the type of 
the development. 

 

Representations 

None received at the time of drafting report 

 

 

Page 22



APPENDIX B:  Site Location Plan 

 
 
Do not scale – this map is indicative only 
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA 
Licence Number 100023578 

Page 23

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee agenda
	Membership:
	Webcasting notice


	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	South Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee minutes
	Agenda Item



	4 PL/23/0768/FA - The Stoke Poges School, Rogers Lane, Stoke Poges, Buckinghamshire, SL2 4LN
	PL230768FA Appx2

	5 PL/23/1174/FA - Walters Court, 811 Bath Road, Burnham, Buckinghamshire, SL6 0PR
	PL231174FA Walters Court Appx2


